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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, December 31,
(In thousands, except share and per share data) 2025 2024
(Unaudited)
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 138,573  $ 109,707
Accounts receivable, net 330,518 344,096
Prepaid expenses 20,529 27,112
Other current assets 9,253 2,093
Current assets of discontinued operations 165,905 1,176,036

Total Current Assets 664,778 1,659,044

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Structures, net 320,083 335,761
Other property, plant and equipment, net 137,331 144,226
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Permits, net 580,635 613,305
Other intangible assets, net 212,572 218,465
Goodwill 507,819 507,819
OTHER ASSETS

Operating lease right-of-use assets 1,322,819 1,315,529
Other assets 20,581 10,114

Total Assets $ 3,766,618 $ 4,804,263

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 40,267 $ 38,769
Accrued expenses 142,208 163,615
Current operating lease liabilities 131,499 132,877
Accrued interest 82,155 90,945
Deferred revenue 82,109 70,214
Current portion of long-term debt 286 348
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 99,468 775,210

Total Current Liabilities 577,992 1,271,978

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term debt 5,066,919 5,659,957
Non-current operating lease liabilities 1,231,981 1,229,345
Deferred tax liabilities, net 230,445 221,814
Other liabilities 61,485 60,952

Total Liabilities 7,168,822 8,444,046
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 6)

STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Noncontrolling interests 8,749 11,669
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share: 2,350,000,000 shares authorized (512,958,744 shares issued as of June 30, 2025;

503,245,029 shares issued as of December 31, 2024) 5,130 5,032
Additional paid-in capital 3,600,443 3,589,930
Accumulated deficit (6,888,100) (6,960,129)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (97,717) (257,837)
Treasury stock (16,070,555 shares held as of June 30, 2025; 14,038,477 shares held as of December 31, 2024) (30,709) (28,448)

Total Stockholders' Deficit (3,402,204) (3,639,783)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit $ 3,766,618 § 4,804,263

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

(UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands, except per share data) June 30, June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue $ 402,808 $ 376,483 $ 736,988 $ 703,323
Operating expenses:
Direct operating expenses" 185,530 167,168 354,059 322,222
Selling, general and administrative expenses(" 65,711 64,427 129,373 123,699
Corporate expenses!) 31,123 34,047 50,903 63,921
Depreciation and amortization 43,335 42,501 86,339 84,553
Other operating income, net (315) (90) (6,100) (3,387)
Operating income 77,424 68,430 122,414 112,315
Interest expense, net (96,026) (100,120) (195,387) (201,815)
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt 28,796 — 28,796 (2,393)
Other income (expense), net 663 449 912 (8,400)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 10,857 (31,241) (43,265) (100,293)
Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to continuing operations (4,526) 5,827 (5,706) 5,655
Income (loss) from continuing operations 6,331 (25,414) (48,971) (94,638)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 4,318 (13,220) 122,833 (33,079)
Consolidated net income (loss) 10,649 (38,634) 73,862 (127,717)
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 1,129 536 1,833 1,120
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 9,520 § (39,170) 8 72,029 § (128,837)
Net ]i;lcqme (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common stock
— Basic:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to the Company per
share of common stock $ 001 $ (0.05) $ 0.10) $ (0.20)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company
per share of common stock 0.01 (0.03) 0.25 (0.07)
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common
stock — Basic® $ 002 $ (0.08) $ 0.15 §$ (0.26)
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common stock
— Diluted:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to the Company per
share of common stock $ 0.01 $ 0.05) $ 0.10) $ (0.20)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company
per share of common stock 0.01 (0.03) 0.25 (0.07)
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common
stock — Diluted® $ 0.02 § (0.08) $ 0.15 § (0.26)

(O]

2

Excludes depreciation and amortization.

Due to rounding, the total may not equal the sum of the line items in the table above.

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

(In thousands) June 30, June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 9,520 $ (39,170) $ 72,029 $ (128,837)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 8,596 (4,615) 31,252 (16,411)
Reclassification adjustment for realized net losses from cumulative translation
adjustments and pension related to sold businesses(! — — 128,890 —
Other comprehensive income (loss) 8,596 (4,615) 160,142 (16,411)
Comprehensive income (loss) 18,116 (43,785) 232,171 (145,248)
Less: Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests 18 — 22 (5)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 18,098  § (43,785) § 232,149 8§ (145,243)

M Included in “Income from discontinued operations” on Consolidated Statement of Income.

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(In thousands, except share data)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2025

Balances at March 31, 2025

Net income

Share-based compensation

Reissuance of treasury stock to settle share-based awards

Release of stock-based awards and exercise of stock
options

Payments to noncontrolling interests, net

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Balances at June 30, 2025

Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
Balances at March 31, 2024

Net income (loss)

Share-based compensation

Release of stock-based awards and exercise of stock
options

Payments to noncontrolling interests, net
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Balances at June 30, 2024

(In thousands, except share data)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2025

Balances at December 31, 2024

Net income

Share-based compensation

Reissuance of treasury stock to settle share-based awards

Release of stock-based awards and exercise of stock
options

Payments to noncontrolling interests, net

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Disposition of businesses

Balances at June 30, 2025

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024

Balances at December 31, 2023

Net income (loss)

Share-based compensation

Release of stock-based awards and exercise of stock
options

Payments to noncontrolling interests, net

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Balances at June 30, 2024

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended
Controlling Interest
Common Shares Non-controlling Common Additional Paid-in Accumulated Accumulated Other Total Stockholders’
Issued Interests Stock Capital Deficit Comprehensive Loss Treasury Stock Deficit
505,823,618 $ 12225 $ 5058 $ 3,595340 $ (6,897,620) § (106,295) (29432) $ (3,420,724)
1,129 — — 9,520 — — 10,649
— — 7,326 — — — 7,326
— — @,151) — — 2,151 —
7,135,126 — 7 (72) — — (3,428) (3,428)
(4,623) — — — — — (4,623)
18 — — — 8,578 — 8,596
512,958,744  §$ 8,749 § 5130 §$ 3,600,443  $ (6,888,100) § (97,717) (30,709) $ (3,402,204)
494,764,888  § 12,776 § 4948 § 3,569,099 § (6,870,542)  § (239,135) (23,638) $ (3,546,492)
536 — — (39,170) — — (38,634)
— — 7,546 — — — 7,546
7,931,945 = 79 (719 = = (4,629) (4.629)
(3,753) — — — — — (3,753)
= = = = (4,615) = (4,615)
502,696,833  § 9,559 § 5,027 $ 3,576,566  $ (6,909,712)  § (243,750) (28,267) $ (3,590,577)
Six Months Ended
Controlling Interest
Common Shares Non-controlling Common Additional Paid-in Accumulated Accumulated Other Total Stockholders’
Issued Interests Stock Capital Deficit Comprehensive Loss Treasury Stock Deficit
503,245,029 $ 1,669 § 5032 $ 3,589,930 $ (6,960,129)  $ (257.837) (28,448) $ (3,639,783)
1,833 — — 72,029 — — 73,862
— — 12,762 — — — 12,762
— — (2,151) — — 2,151 —
9,713,715 — 98 (98) — — (4.412) (4,412)
(4,775) — — — — — (4,775)
27 — — — 31,225 — 31,252
) — — — 128,895 — 128,890
512,958,744  § 8,749 §$ 5130 $ 3,600,443 § (6,888,100) S (97,717) (30,709) $ (3,402,204)
494,061,048  $ 12,298 § 4941  § 3,563,807 § (6,780,875)  $ (227,344) (23,570) $ (3,450,743)
1,120 — — (128,837) — — (127,717)
— — 12,845 — — — 12,845
8,635,785 — 86 (86) — — (4,697) (4,697)
(3,854) — — — — — (3,854)
5) — — — (16,406) — (16,411)
502,696,833 S 9559 $ 5027 3,576,566 S (6.909.712) $ (243,750) (28267) $ (3,590,577)

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income (loss)
Reconciling items:
Non-cash operating lease expense (net of interest)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Gains on dispositions of businesses and/or operating assets, net
Share-based compensation
Amortization of deferred financing charges and note discounts
Foreign exchange transaction loss (gain)
Credit loss expense
Deferred taxes
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt, net, and debt modification expense
Other reconciling items, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of dispositions:
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other operating assets
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in operating lease liabilities (cash payments, net of interest)
Decrease in accrued interest
Increase in deferred revenue
Decrease in other operating liabilities
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Asset acquisitions
Proceeds from sales of businesses and/or assets, net of direct costs to sell and cash sold
Other investing activities, net
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Debt issuance and modification costs
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards
Payments to noncontrolling interests, net
Net cash used for financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024
73,862 $ (127,717)
113219 131,819
86,339 126,246
(144,276) (6,197)
12,762 12,845
5,329 5,838
4,550 (3,996)
1,606 164
9,537 (5,795)
(23,396) 16,785
(1,103) (796)
32,135 42,617
(7,907) 3,160
(51,899) (65,885)
(124,080) (141,260)
(8,790) (4,035)
27,151 18,128
(2,713) (5,893)
2,326 (3,972)
(42,080) (51,828)
— (8,813)
599,292 10,305
74 (492)
557,286 (50,828)
- 1,657,000
(574,673) (1,635,270)
(1,421) (18,890)
(4,412) (4,697)
(4,775) (3,854)
(585,281) (5,711)
4414 (2,093)
(21,255) (62,604)
172,072 260,541
150,817 $ 197,937
210,220 $ 218,521
6,737 $ 9,896
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Principles of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. (‘CCOH”) and its subsidiaries, as well as entities in which the Company
has a controlling financial interest or is the primary beneficiary. Noncontrolling interests are reported separately within equity. Intercompany transactions are eliminated in

consolidation. All references in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries.

Preparation of Interim Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with United States (“U.S.”) generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) applicable to interim financial reporting and, in the opinion of management, include all normal and recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the results of
the interim periods shown. Due to seasonality and other factors, the results for the interim periods may not be indicative of results for the full year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), certain information and footnote disclosures required by GAAP for annual
financial statements have been condensed or omitted from these interim financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes included in the Company’s 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on February 24, 2025.

Use of Estimates

These consolidated financial statements reflect estimates and assumptions made by management that affect the reported amounts. The Company bases its estimates on historical
experience and other assumptions deemed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Discontinued Operations

As described in the Company’s 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company classified its Europe-North segment and Latin American businesses as discontinued
operations as of December 31, 2024, in addition to its business in Spain, which was classified as discontinued operations in 2023.

In accordance with GAAP, assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and results of discontinued operations
are reported as a separate component of “Consolidated net income (loss)” in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) for all periods presented, resulting in changes to the
presentation of certain prior period amounts. Cash flows from discontinued operations are not reported separately in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Refer to Note 2 for additional information on discontinued operations. All other notes to these consolidated financial statements present the results of continuing operations and
exclude amounts related to discontinued operations for all periods presented.
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 2 - DISPOSITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Dispositions

In 2025, the Company sold, or entered into an agreement to sell, the following businesses, which were classified as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2024:

On February 5, 2025, the Company sold its businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile to Global Media US LLC in a simultaneous sign-and-close transaction for an
aggregate purchase price of $34.0 million, subject to certain customary adjustments, resulting in a gain on sale of $69.5 million. After adjustments, and net of direct
transaction costs paid and cash sold with the businesses, net cash proceeds as of June 30, 2025 were $12.6 million. Additionally, the Company is eligible for an
additional $1.25 million earn-out, contingent upon the profitability of the sold businesses through December 31, 2026.

On March 31, 2025, the Company sold its Europe-North segment businesses to Bauer Radio Limited, a subsidiary of Bauer Media Group, for an aggregate purchase
price of $625.0 million, subject to certain customary adjustments, resulting in a gain on sale of $65.9 million. After adjustments, and net of direct transaction costs paid
and cash sold with the businesses, net cash proceeds as of June 30, 2025 were $576.7 million. Also on March 31, 2025, the Company used a portion of the net
proceeds from this sale to fully prepay the outstanding term loans (the “CCIBV Term Loan Facility”) of Clear Channel International B.V. (“CCIBV”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, along with accrued interest. Refer to Note 5 for additional details.

On May 6, 2025, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell its business in Brazil to Publibanca Brasil S.A., an affiliate of Eletromidia S.A., for a
purchase price of approximately R$80 million (Brazilian reais), or approximately US$14.7 million based on the prevailing exchange rate as of June 30, 2025, subject
to certain customary adjustments. The transaction is expected to close later in 2025, subject to the satisfaction of regulatory approval and other customary closing
conditions. As of June 30, 2025, the Company had recorded a cumulative loss of $47.9 million to reduce the carrying value of the Brazil business to its estimated fair
value less costs to sell.

Gains and losses related to these sales are reflected in “Income (loss) from discontinued operations” in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss), and net cash proceeds
received are included in “Proceeds from sales of businesses and/or assets, net of direct costs to sell and cash sold” within investing activities in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

As part of these sales, the Company has agreed to provide certain transitional services to the buyers pursuant to transitional services agreements. Income and expenses related to
these services are presented as part of “Income (loss) from continuing operations” in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).

The sales process for the Company’s remaining discontinued operations in Spain is ongoing. While the Company cannot guarantee the completion of any transaction, the sale is
expected to occur within the next year, subject to the satisfaction of regulatory approval and other closing conditions, if applicable.
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

As previously described, assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for all periods presented. The following
table reconciles the carrying amounts of the major classes of assets and liabilities of discontinued operations to the current assets and liabilities of discontinued operations as
presented on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets:

June 310, Decembezr 31,
(In thousands) 20250 2024%
Assets of discontinued operations:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,487 $ 54,595
Accounts receivable, net 53,896 227,240
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19,700 49,252
Property, plant and equipment, net 62,701 212,531
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net — 160,047
Operating lease right-of-use assets 46,933 472,774
Other assets 4,747 33,299
Valuation allowance on business in Brazil® (30,559) (33,702)
Current assets of discontinued operations on Consolidated Balance Sheets $ 165,905 § 1,176,036
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 28,308 $ 235,215
Operating lease liabilities 50,161 485,535
Deferred revenue 1,172 17,804
Other liabilities 2,504 25,916
Valuation allowance on business in Brazil® 17,323 10,740
Current liabilities of discontinued operations on Consolidated Balance Sheets $ 99,468 $ 775,210

(M As of June 30, 2025, the balances consisted of assets and liabilities of the Company’s businesses in Spain and Brazil, which remain held for sale.

@ As of December 31, 2024, the balances included assets and liabilities related to the Company’s businesses in Spain and Brazil, as well as its former businesses in the Europe-North segment
and in Mexico, Peru and Chile. As previously described, the Company’s Europe-North segment businesses and its businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile were sold in the first quarter of 2025.

& The valuation allowance on the business in Brazil represents the cumulative loss recorded to reduce the carrying value of the business to fair value, less costs to sell. The valuation allowance
includes a contra-asset recorded up to the carrying value of the business’s assets, with the remainder recognized as a liability.

Letters of Credit and Guarantees

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had an outstanding letter of credit for $20.2 million related to its former business in France. This letter of credit was canceled in March
2025, and the Company was released from any payment obligation.

As of June 30, 2025, the Company had an outstanding $6.8 million letter of credit and $9.3 million in bank guarantees, both related to its business in Spain. The bank
guarantees were supported by $0.7 million in cash collateral.

10
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

The following table provides details about the major classes of line items constituting “Income (loss) from discontinued operations” as presented in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, June 30,
20250 2024@ 2025@ 2024®
Revenue $ 42,579 $ 214,033 $ 216,505 $ 391,426
Expenses:
Direct operating expenses® 23,585 133,798 153,407 259,114
Selling, general and administrative expenses® 7,119 37,501 43,822 73,718
Corporate expenses®® 1,050 10,809 10,221 21,136
Depreciation and amortization — 11,382 — 23,620
Impairment charges® — 18,073 — 18,073
Interest expense (income), net® 137 7,290 7,223 13,250
Other expense (income), net® (3,505) 5,031 7,532 12,130
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before net gain (loss) on sold or
held-for-sale businesses and/or income taxes 14,467 (9,851) (5,700) (29,615)
Gain (loss) on sold and held-for-sale businesses, net” (7,641) — 131,973 —
Income tax expense attributable to discontinued operations (2,508) (3,369) (3,440) (3,464)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ 4318 § (13,220) § 122,833  § (33,079)

(M Discontinued operations for the three months ended June 30, 2025 includes results from the Company’s businesses in Spain and Brazil.

@ Discontinued operations for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 include results from the Company’s businesses in Spain and Brazil,

its former Europe-North segment businesses through their date of sale (March 31, 2025), and its former Latin American businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile through their date of sale
(February 5, 2025).

®  Excludes depreciation and amortization.

@ Impairment charges for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 reflect the impairment of certain long-lived assets in the Company’s Latin American businesses.

©  Interest expense primarily relates to the $375.0 million aggregate principal balance of outstanding debt issued by CCIBV. On March 22, 2024, CCIBV entered into the CCIBV Term Loan

Facility and used the proceeds to redeem all of the outstanding 6.625% Senior Secured Notes due 2025 (the “CCIBV Senior Secured Notes”). On March 31, 2025, CCIBV fully prepaid the

CCIBV Term Loan Facility. Upon repayment, CCIBV and the guarantors under the credit agreement that governed the CCIBV Term Loan Facility, and all collateral granted as security
thereunder, were released, and the credit agreement was terminated.
©  Other expense (income), net, primarily consists of transaction costs related to international sales processes, gains and losses on the sale of operating assets, foreign currency gains and losses
on intercompany notes, and financing-related items. Related to the financing transactions described in note (5) to this table, this line includes a $5.4 million loss on debt extinguishment for
the six months ended June 30, 2025, and a $2.4 million loss on debt extinguishment and $2.0 million in debt modification expense for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

™ For the three months ended June 30, 2025, the Company recognized losses of $1.1 million related to the sale of its former businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile, $0.6 million related to the

sale of its former Europe-North segment businesses, and $5.9 million related to its business in Brazil. For the six months ended June 30, 2025, the Company recognized gains of $69.5 million

related to the sale of its former businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile and $65.9 million related to the sale of its former Europe-North segment businesses, partially offset by a $3.4 million
loss related to its business in Brazil.
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Capital Expenditures of Discontinued Operations

The following table presents the capital expenditures for discontinued operations:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Capital expenditures” $ 3,727 $ 9,313 $ 16,022 $ 24,213

(M In addition to capital expenditures paid during the reported periods, the Company had accrued but unpaid capital expenditures for discontinued operations of $1.3 million and $6.9 million as
of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
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NOTE 3 - SEGMENT DATA

The Company operates two reportable segments, which it believes best reflect how the Company is currently managed: America and Airports, with remaining operations in
Singapore reported as “Other.” The America segment serves markets across the U.S., while the Airports segment offers out-of-home advertising at airports in the U.S. and the
Caribbean.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA is the profitability metric reported to the Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”). It is calculated as revenue less direct operating
expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding restructuring and other costs. Restructuring and other costs include costs associated with cost-saving
initiatives such as severance, consulting and termination costs and other special costs.

The following table presents revenue, significant expenses, Segment Adjusted EBITDA and capital expenditures for each reportable segment for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024. Segment information for total assets is not presented as this information is not used by the CODM to measure segment performance or allocate
resources between segments.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
America
Revenue $ 303,111  $ 290,207 $ 557,304 $ 539,984
Site lease expense" 94,115 84,703 182,450 167,551
Employee compensation costs® 43,903 42,586 85,937 83,289
Other segment expenses® 37,492 35,938 73,445 66,700
Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 127,601 $ 126,980 $ 215472 $ 222,444
Capital expenditures $ 8827 $ 13,450 $ 18,646 $ 22,273
Airports
Revenue $ 99,685 $ 86,219 $ 179,668 $ 163,145
Site lease expense!" 59,915 52,827 111,153 96,840
Employee compensation costs® 8,213 7,390 15,632 14,434
Other segment expenses® 7,210 6,920 14,223 13,707
Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 24347 $ 19,082 $ 38,660 $ 38,164
Capital expenditures $ 2,559 §$ 1,807 $ 4793 $ 3,446

(M Site lease expense includes rent for both lease and non-lease contracts and consists of payments for land or space used by the Company’s advertising displays, including minimum guaranteed
payments and revenue-sharing arrangements.

@ Employee compensation costs include employee salaries and wages, sales commissions and guarantees, bonuses, employee benefits and payroll taxes. The costs presented in this table
exclude restructuring and other costs, such as severance, which are not included in the calculation of Segment Adjusted EBITDA.

©®  Other segment expenses consist of expenses within “Direct operating expenses” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss),
excluding site lease expense, employee compensation costs, and restructuring and other costs (as previously defined). Specifically, other segment expenses include production, installation and
maintenance costs related to the printing, transporting, posting and maintaining of advertising copy; costs to operate out-of-home displays, including electricity, repair and maintenance costs;
and other general operating expenses, such as marketing, facilities and information technology costs.
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The following table reconciles certain of the reportable segment measures disclosed in the above table to the Company’s consolidated measures for its continuing operations:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue
America $ 303,111 $ 290,207 $ 557,304 § 539,984
Airports 99,685 86,219 179,668 163,145
Other 12 57 16 194
Total $ 402,808 $ 376,483 § 736,988 $ 703,323

Segment Adjusted EBITDA

America $ 127,601 $ 126,980 $ 215472 $ 222,444
Airports 24,347 19,082 38,660 38,164
Other (381) (387) (571) (793)
Total $ 151,567 145675 253,561 $ 259,815

Reconciliation of Segment Adjusted EBITDA to Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes

Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 151,567 $ 145,675 $ 253,561 $ 259,815
Less reconciling items:
Corporate expenses) 31,123 34,047 50,903 63,921
Restructuring and other costs® — 787 5 2,413
Depreciation and amortization 43,335 42,501 86,339 84,553
Other operating income, net (315) (90) (6,100) (3,387)
Interest expense, net 96,026 100,120 195,387 201,815
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt (28,796) — (28,796) 2,393
Other (income) expense, net (663) (449) 912) 8,400
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes $ 10,857 $ (31,241) § (43,265) $ (100,293)

Capital Expenditures®

America $ 8,827 § 13,450 $ 18,646 $ 22,273
Airports 2,559 1,807 4,793 3,446
Other 40 3 52 13
Corporate 1,401 1,051 2,567 1,883

Total $ 12,827 § 16,311  § 26,058 $ 27,615

Corporate expenses primarily consist of infrastructure and support costs related to information technology, human resources, legal (including estimated costs for legal liabilities), finance,
business services and administrative functions, as well as overall executive and support functions. Share-based compensation and certain restructuring and other costs are also included in
corporate expenses.

@ Restructuring and other costs presented in this table exclude those costs related to corporate functions, which are included within the “Corporate expenses” line item.

®  In addition to capital expenditures paid during the reported periods, the Company had accrued but unpaid capital expenditures for continuing operations of $3.5 million and $4.6 million as of
June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
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NOTE 4 - REVENUE

The Company generates revenue primarily from the sale of advertising on printed and digital out-of-home advertising displays. Certain revenue transactions are considered
leases for accounting purposes, as they grant customers the right to control the use of the Company’s advertising displays for a specified period. Revenue from leases is
accounted for under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 842, and revenue from remaining transactions is accounted for as revenue from contracts with customers

under ASC 606.

The following table presents revenue from contracts with customers, revenue from leases and total revenue from continuing operations, disaggregated by geography, for the

three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024:

Revenue from contracts

(In thousands) with customers Revenue from leases Total revenue
Three Months Ended June 30, 2025
u.s.® $ 257,549 145,247 402,796
Singapore 12 — 12
Total $ 257,561 145,247 402,808
Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
Us.® $ 213,154 163,272 376,426
Singapore 57 — 57
Total $ 213,211 163,272 376,483
Six Months Ended June 30, 2025
U.s.® $ 465,757 271,215 736,972
Singapore 16 — 16
Total $ 465,773 271,215 736,988
Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
Us.® $ 397,586 305,543 703,129
Singapore 194 — 194
Total $ 397,780 305,543 703,323

(M U.S. revenue, which includes an immaterial amount of revenue derived from airport displays in the Caribbean, is comprised of revenue from the Company’s America and Airports segments.

The value of unsatisfied performance obligations is not disclosed as the majority of the Company’s contracts with customers have terms of one year or less. For contracts with
customers that have an original expected duration greater than one year, the future amount to be invoiced to the customer directly corresponds to the value that will be received

by the customer under the contract.
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,

(In thousands) Maturity 2025 2024
Receivables-Based Credit Facility® June 2030 — 3 —
Revolving Credit Facility® June 2030 — —
Term Loan Facility August 2028 425,000 425,000
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 5.125% Senior Secured Notes August 2027 1,250,000 1,250,000
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 9.000% Senior Secured Notes September 2028 750,000 750,000
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 7.875% Senior Secured Notes April 2030 865,000 865,000
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 7.750% Senior Notes® April 2028 899,311 995,000
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 7.500% Senior Notes® June 2029 905,950 1,040,000
Clear Channel International B.V. Term Loan Facility® — 375,000
Finance leases 3,763 3,974
Original issue discount (4,224) (7,313)
Long-term debt fees (27,595) (36,356)
Total debt 5,067,205 5,660,305

Less: Current portion 286 348
Total long-term debt $ 5,066,919 $ 5,659,957

(M On June 12, 2025, the Company amended its Receivables-Based Credit Agreement to, among other things, extend the maturity date of the Receivables-Based Credit Facility from August 23,
2026 to June 12, 2030, increase the maximum revolving credit commitments from $175.0 million to $200.0 million, and revise the calculation of the borrowing base to expand the scope of
eligible accounts.

@ On June 12, 2025, the Company amended its Senior Secured Credit Agreement to, among other things, extend the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility from August 23, 2026 to June
12, 2030 and reduce the revolving credit commitments from $115.8 million to $100.0 million.

©®  In the second quarter of 2025, the Company repurchased $95.7 million aggregate principal amount of its 7.750% Senior Notes due 2028 (the “7.750% Senior Notes™) and $134.1 million
aggregate principal amount of its 7.500% Senior Notes due 2029 (the “7.500% Senior Notes” and, together with the 7.750% Senior Notes, the “Senior Notes™) in open market transactions at
a discount. The total cash payment was $203.4 million, including accrued interest of $4.0 million and related fees. As a result, the Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of
$28.8 million. The repurchased notes are held by the Company and have not been canceled.

@ On March 31, 2025, the Company used a portion of the net proceeds from the sale of its Europe-North segment businesses (as described in Note 2) to fully prepay the $375.0 million
aggregate principal amount of CCIBV term loans and $11.9 million of accrued interest. As a result, the Company recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $5.4 million, which is reported
in discontinued operations as described in Note 2. Upon repayment, CCIBV and the guarantors under the credit agreement that governed the CCIBV Term Loan Facility, and all collateral
granted as security thereunder, were released, and the credit agreement was terminated.

The aggregate market value of the Company’s debt, based on market prices for which quotes were available, was approximately $5.0 billion and $5.5 billion as of June 30,
2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. Under the fair value hierarchy established by ASC 820-10-35, the inputs used to determine the market value of the Company’s debt
are classified as Level 1.

As of June 30, 2025, the Company was in compliance with all covenants contained in its debt agreements.
Letters of Credit, Surety Bonds and Guarantees

The Company has letters of credit, surety bonds and bank guarantees related to various operational matters, including insurance, bid, concession and performance bonds, as
well as other items.

As of June 30, 2025, the Company had $81.2 million of letters of credit outstanding under its Receivables-Based Credit Facility, resulting in $118.8 million of excess
availability, and $6.8 million of letters of credit outstanding under its Revolving Credit Facility, resulting in $93.2 million of remaining excess availability. Additionally, as of
June 30, 2025, the Company had $43.0 million and $9.8 million of surety bonds and bank guarantees outstanding, respectively, a portion of which was supported by
$2.4 million of cash collateral. A portion of these letters of credit and guarantees at June 30, 2025 related to discontinued operations that were held for sale as of this date. Refer
to Note 2 for additional information.
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Subsequent Event — Debt Refinancing

On August 4, 2025, the Company closed a private offering of $1,150.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 and $900.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 7.500% Senior Secured Notes due 2033 (together, the “New Senior Secured Notes”).

The New Senior Secured Notes are guaranteed on a senior secured basis by certain of the Company’s wholly owned domestic subsidiaries (collectively, the “Guarantors”). The
New Senior Secured Notes and related guarantees are secured, subject to permitted liens and certain other exceptions, on a first-priority basis by security interests in all of the
Company’s and the Guarantors’ assets that secure the Company’s existing senior secured credit facilities and existing senior secured notes (other than accounts receivable and
related assets securing the Company’s Receivables-Based Credit Facility) and, on a second-priority basis, by accounts receivable and related assets securing the Receivables-
Based Credit Facility.

At closing, the Company deposited an amount equal to the net proceeds from the New Senior Secured Notes offering, together with cash on hand, with the trustee for the
5.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2027 (the “5.125% Senior Secured Notes”) and 9.000% Senior Secured Notes due 2028 (the “9.000% Senior Secured Notes”) to redeem
those notes in full. As a result, the indentures governing these notes were satisfied and discharged.

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in certain legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. As required, the Company has accrued estimates for the
probable costs of resolving those claims for which loss is deemed probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. These estimates have been developed in consultation
with the Company’s counsel and are based on an analysis of potential outcomes, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations for any particular period could be materially affected by changes in the Company’s assumptions or the effectiveness of its strategies related to these
proceedings. Due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation, there can be no assurance that the resolution of any particular claim or proceeding would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Although the Company is involved in a variety of legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business, a large portion of its litigation arises in the following contexts:
commercial disputes, employment and benefits-related claims, land use and zoning disputes, governmental fines, intellectual property claims, personal injury claims and tax
disputes.

NOTE 7 - INCOME TAXES
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) Attributable to Continuing Operations

The Company’s income tax benefit (expense) attributable to continuing operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 consisted of the following
components:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Current tax expense attributable to continuing operations $ (1,281) $ 337) $ (2,497) $ (830)
Deferred tax benefit (expense) attributable to continuing operations (3,245) 6,164 (3,209) 6,485
Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to continuing operations $ (4,526) $ 5827 $ (5,706) $ 5,655

The effective tax rates for continuing operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 were 41.7% and (13.2)%, respectively, compared to 18.7% and 5.6% for the
same periods in 2024. The rates were primarily impacted by a valuation allowance recorded against current-period deferred tax assets, primarily related to interest expense
carryforwards, due to uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to realize those assets in future periods.
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Subsequent Event — U.S. Tax Reform

On July 4, 2025, the One Big Beautiful Bill Act (“OBBB”) was enacted, introducing new legislation and revisions to the Internal Revenue Code, including modifications to
bonus depreciation and interest expense limitations, among other provisions. Because the legislation was enacted after June 30, 2025, no adjustments have been recorded in
these consolidated financial statements. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the OBBB and will recognize the effects of applicable provisions in the third quarter
of 2025.

NOTE 8 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Company’s property, plant and equipment consisted of the following asset classes as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024:

June 30, December 31,

(In thousands) 2025 2024
Structures $ 1,859,073 § 1,847,953
Land, buildings and improvements 128,231 130,325
Furniture and other equipment 99,819 96,500
Construction in progress 26,997 31,682
Property, plant and equipment, gross 2,114,120 2,106,460
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,656,706) (1,626,473)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 457,414  § 479,987

NOTE 9 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Intangible Assets

The following table presents the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each major class of intangible assets as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024:

(In thousands) June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Carrying Amount Amortization Gross Carrying Amount Amortization
Permits $ 758,482 $ (177,847) $ 758,482 § (145,177)
Permanent easements 165,867 — 165,031 —
Trademarks 83,569 (51,691) 83,569 (47,533)
Transit, street furniture and other outdoor contractual rights 206,283 (191,456) 206,283 (188,885)
Total intangible assets $ 1,214201  $ (420,994) $ 1,213,365  § (381,595)
Goodwill

The following table presents the goodwill balance for the Company’s segments as of June 30, 2025. There were no changes to the balances during the six months ended
June 30, 2025.

(In thousands) Americal) Airports Consolidated
Balance as of June 30, 2025 $ 482937 § 24882 $ 507,819

(" The goodwill balance for the America segment is net of cumulative impairments totaling $2.6 billion.
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NOTE 10 - STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Share-Based Compensation
Share-Based Compensation Expense

Share-based compensation expense for continuing operations, recognized within “Corporate expenses” on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss), was $7.4 million and
$6.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $12.8 million and $11.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

Annual Grants

On May 28, 2025, the Compensation Committee of the CCOH Board of Directors approved grants under the Company’s 2012 Third Amended and Restated Stock Incentive
Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan”) of approximately 18.2 million restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and 4.0 million performance stock units (“PSUs”) to certain employees as part
of their annual compensation.

The RSUs will vest in three equal annual installments on April 1 of 2026, 2027 and 2028, subject to continued employment on each vesting date.

The PSUs will vest, to the extent earned, following a three-year performance period from April 1, 2025 through March 31, 2028, and are also subject to continued employment
through the vesting date. For each grantee, 65% of the award vests based on the Company’s total shareholder return (“TSR”) relative to a designated peer group (“Relative
TSR”), and the remaining 35% vests based on the Company’s cumulative Adjusted EBITDA less capital expenditures (“Cumulative ULFCF”’), measured over the performance
period against pre-established goals and modified by a multiplier based on the compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of the Company’s stock price over the performance
period (“CAGR Multiplier”).

»  For PSUs that vest based on Relative TSR, payouts range from 0% to 150% of target. Performance at the 25", 50" and 75" percentiles of the peer group corresponds
to payouts of 50%, 100% and 150%, respectively, with straight-line interpolation between points. No PSUs will be earned for performance below the 25" percentile. If
TSR is negative over the performance period, the maximum payout is capped at 100%.

*  For PSUs that vest based on Cumulative ULFCEF, payouts also range from 0% to 150% of target, subject to the CAGR Multiplier. Cumulative ULFCF achievement of
at least 85%, at least 97% but less than 103%, and 110% or more of the Cumulative ULFCF goal results in payouts of 50%, 100% and 150%, respectively, with
straight-line interpolation between thresholds. No PSUs will be earned for performance below 85% of the Cumulative ULFCF goal. The resulting vesting level is then
adjusted by the CAGR Multiplier as follows: 1.5x for CAGR of +15% or more, 1.0x for CAGR greater than -5% but less than +5%, and 0.5x for CAGR of -15% or
less, with straight-line interpolation between points.

The RSUs and PSUs are subject to accelerated vesting and distribution upon certain qualifying terminations and in connection with a change in control in which the awards are
not assumed or substituted, as set forth in the applicable award agreement.

The Company accounts for RSUs and PSUs as equity-classified awards under ASC 718, as follows:
*  RSUs are expensed on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

*  Expense for PSUs that vest based on Relative TSR, a market condition, is recognized over the service period regardless of outcome and is based on grant-date fair
value determined using a Monte Carlo simulation.

*  Expense for PSUs that vest based on Cumulative ULFCF, a performance condition modified by the market-based CAGR Multiplier, is recognized only if achievement
is considered probable and is reassessed each reporting period. The grant-date fair value of these PSUs is determined using a Monte Carlo simulation.

As of June 30, 2025, 23,389,203 shares remained available for issuance under the Stock Incentive Plan, assuming a 100% payout of all outstanding PSUs, including awards
granted to employees of discontinued operations.

Treasury Share Settlement of Share-Based Awards

Beginning in the second quarter of 2025, the Company began settling certain share-based compensation awards through the reissuance of treasury shares rather than issuing
new shares of common stock. Treasury shares are reissued at historical cost, with the Company applying a last-in, first-out method to determine cost. The related activity is
reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit and classified as a non-cash financing activity.
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Computation of Net Income (Loss) per Share

The following table presents the computation of net income (loss) per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024:

(In thousands, except per share data) Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Numerators:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 6,331 $ (25,414) $ 48971) $ (94,638)
Less: Net income from continuing operations attributable to noncontrolling
interests 1,106 517 1,776 1,075
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to the Company 5,225 (25,931) (50,747) (95,713)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 4,318 (13,220) 122,833 (33,079)
Less: Net income from discontinued operations attributable to noncontrolling
interests 23 19 57 45
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company 4,295 (13,239) 122,776 (33,124)
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 9,520 § (39,170) $ 72,029 $ (128,837)
Denominators:
Weighted average common shares outstanding — Basic 496,792 488,740 493,580 486,244
Weighted average common shares outstanding — Diluted" 498,401 488,740 493,580 486,244

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common stock

— Basic:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to the Company per

share of common stock $ 0.01 $ (0.05) $ (0.10) $ (0.20)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company per

share of common stock 0.01 (0.03) 0.25 (0.07)

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common stock —
Basic?® $ 0.02 $ (0.08) $ 015 § (0.26)

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common stock
— Diluted:

Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to the Company per
share of common stock $ 0.01 $ (0.05) $ (0.10) $ (0.20)

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the Company per
share of common stock 0.01 (0.03) 0.25 (0.07)

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share of common stock —
Diluted® $ 002 $ (0.08) $ 015 § (0.26)

(M For the three months ended June 30, 2025, diluted weighted average common shares outstanding included 1.6 million shares from the assumed conversion of dilutive equity awards,
calculated using the treasury stock method. Equity awards representing 24.1 million shares for the three months ended June 30, 2024, and 28.3 million and 24.3 million shares for the six
months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

@ Due to rounding, the total may not equal the sum of the line items in the table above.
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NOTE 11 — OTHER INFORMATION
Reconciliation of Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The following table reconciles cash and cash equivalents reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows:

June 30, December 31,
(In thousands) 2025 2024
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheets $ 138,573  $ 109,707
Cash and cash equivalents included in Current assets of discontinued operations 8,487 54,595
Restricted cash included in:
Other current assets 1,321 1,116
Current assets of discontinued operations 886 6,654
Other assets 1,550 —
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash in the Statements of Cash Flows $ 150,817 8 172,072
Accounts Receivable
The following table presents the components of “Accounts receivable, net,” as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
June 30, December 31,
(In thousands) 2025 2024
Accounts receivable $ 342,022 $ 355,622
Less: Allowance for credit losses (11,504) (11,526)
Accounts receivable, net $ 330,518 $ 344,096

Credit loss expense for continuing operations, recognized within “Selling, general and administrative expenses” on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss), was
$0.9 million and $1.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $1.6 million and $0.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and
2024, respectively.

Accrued Expenses

The following table presents the components of “Accrued expenses” as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

June 30, December 31,
(In thousands) 2025 2024
Accrued rent $ 43,208 $ 54,785
Accrued employee compensation and benefits 26,074 41,723
Accrued taxes 13,759 14,711
Accrued other 59,167 52,396
Total accrued expenses $ 142,208 $ 163,615

Other Operating Income, Net

Other operating income, net, includes net gains from the sale or disposal of operating assets of $0.7 million and $2.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and
2024, respectively, and $7.2 million and $7.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

These gains were partially offset by transaction costs associated with structural initiatives and financial advisory services, totaling $0.1 million and $1.7 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $0.7 million and $3.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, as well as other
miscellaneous fees.

Other Income (Expense), Net

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, other expense, net, included $10.0 million of debt modification costs related to the issuance of the 7.875% Senior Secured Notes due
2030 (the “7.875% Senior Secured Notes™) and the associated prepayment and refinancing of the Term Loan Facility, further described in the Company’s 2024 Annual Report
on Form 10-K.
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Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

There were no significant changes in deferred income tax liabilities resulting from adjustments to other comprehensive income (loss) during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated
financial statements and related notes in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the Company’s 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K. All references in this

2 ” G

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The MD&A is organized as follows:

. Overview — Discussion of the nature, key developments and trends of our business, providing context for the rest of this MD&A.
. Results of Operations — Analysis of our financial performance at both the consolidated and segment levels.
. Liquidity_and Capital Resources — Discussion of our short- and long-term liquidity, including material cash requirements and the anticipated sources of funds

needed to meet these requirements.

This discussion contains forward-looking statements, which are subject to risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statements. See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” contained at the end of this MD&A.

OVERVIEW

Description of Our Business, Segments and Discontinued Operations

We generate revenue by selling advertising on the out-of-home displays we own or operate, including roadside billboards, street furniture and airport displays, using
both digital and printed formats. We operate two reportable business segments: America (U.S. operations excluding airports) and Airports (U.S. and Caribbean airport
operations), with our remaining operations in Singapore reported as “Other.”

As noted in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K, we classified our Europe-North segment and our Latin American businesses as discontinued operations as of
December 31, 2024, in addition to our business in Spain, which we classified as discontinued operations in 2023. Accordingly, these businesses are reported as discontinued
operations in the financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for all periods presented, resulting in changes in the presentation of certain prior period
amounts.

International Sales Processes and Dispositions

On February 5, 2025, we sold our businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile to Global Media US LLC in a simultaneous sign-and-close transaction for an aggregate
purchase price of $34.0 million, subject to certain customary adjustments.

On March 31, 2025, we sold our Europe-North segment businesses to Bauer Radio Limited, a subsidiary of Bauer Media Group, for an aggregate purchase price of
$625.0 million, subject to certain customary adjustments.

On May 6, 2025, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell our business in Brazil to Publibanca Brasil S.A., an affiliate of Eletromidia S.A., for a purchase price of
approximately $14.7 million based on the prevailing exchange rate as of June 30, 2025, subject to certain customary adjustments. The transaction is expected to close later in
2025, pending regulatory approval and the satisfaction of other customary closing conditions.

The sales process for our remaining discontinued operations in Spain is ongoing. While there can be no assurance that a transaction will be completed, we expect the
sale to occur within the next year, subject to regulatory approval and the satisfaction of other applicable closing conditions.

Debt Activity

In the first half of 2025, we used net proceeds from business sales and cash on hand to reduce our outstanding debt by approximately $605 million, improving our
capital structure and enhancing liquidity. These actions included:

*  OnMarch 31, 2025, we fully prepaid the $375.0 million CCIBV Term Loan Facility, along with accrued interest.

* In the second quarter of 2025, we repurchased $229.7 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes for a total cash payment of $203.4 million, including
accrued interest and related fees.
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On June 12, 2025, we amended our Receivables-Based Credit Agreement and Senior Secured Credit Agreement to, among other things, extend the maturity dates of
the related credit facilities to June 2030 and adjust the respective revolving credit commitments.

On August 4, 2025, we closed a private offering of $2.05 billion aggregate principal amount of senior secured notes, consisting of $1.15 billion aggregate principal
amount of 7.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 and $0.9 billion aggregate principal amount of 7.500% Senior Secured Notes due 2033. We used the net proceeds from the
offering, together with cash on hand, to fund the redemption of $2.0 billion of our existing senior secured notes, including our 5.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2027 and
9.000% Senior Secured Notes due 2028. This transaction further extended our debt maturity profile and supports our long-term financial flexibility.

For additional details, refer to Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Macroeconomic Trends, Uncertainties and Seasonality

The U.S. economy continues to face pressure from persistent inflation and elevated interest rates, both of which affect our cost structure. While inflation has moderated
in recent months, it remains above the Federal Reserve’s target, and interest rates continue to influence our borrowing costs.

Global trade policy remains highly uncertain. Since the beginning of 2025, the U.S. has expanded its use of tariffs, including higher tariffs on goods from China and
the European Union, as well as on imports of steel, aluminum and certain technology products. The global trade environment continues to evolve, with several major tariffs
recently maintained or expanded and additional tariffs proposed as negotiations continue. Although we have not experienced material impacts to date, these developments have
resulted in certain isolated cost increases and may continue to affect the cost of materials, components and digital display infrastructure used in our business. We maintain
mitigation strategies, including locked-in pricing agreements with key suppliers, to limit near-term exposure to price fluctuations. However, the long-term effects of evolving
trade policies and economic conditions remain uncertain, and our strategies may not be successful or fully offset these risks. We continue to monitor these developments and
may adjust procurement, pricing and supply chain strategies as needed.

On July 4, 2025, the One Big Beautiful Bill Act (“OBBB”) was enacted, introducing revisions to the Internal Revenue Code, including modifications to bonus
depreciation and interest expense limitations, among other provisions. Because the legislation was enacted after June 30, 2025, no related adjustments were reflected in our
second quarter results. We are currently evaluating the impact of the OBBB and will recognize the effects of applicable provisions in the third quarter of 2025. Given its recent
enactment and scope, the broader implications of the OBBB on the U.S. economy and on our business remain uncertain.

Although inflation and broader economic uncertainty can influence consumer behavior and advertiser spending, demand has remained resilient, particularly across our
digital out-of-home platforms. Due to the seasonality of our business, however, interim results are not necessarily indicative of full-year performance. Historically, revenue and
Segment Adjusted EBITDA are lowest in the first quarter and strongest in the fourth quarter, in line with seasonal advertising trends.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our results of operations focuses on continuing operations and is presented on both a consolidated and segment basis.

*  Our operating segment profit measure is Segment Adjusted EBITDA, which is calculated as revenue less direct operating expenses and selling, general and
administrative expenses, excluding restructuring and other costs. Restructuring and other costs are defined as costs associated with cost-saving initiatives such as
severance, consulting and termination costs and other special costs.

»  Corporate expenses, depreciation and amortization, other operating income and expense, non-operating income and expenses, and income taxes are managed on a total
company basis and are therefore only included in our discussion of consolidated results of continuing operations.

*  Results of discontinued operations are presented and discussed below separately from results of continuing operations.
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Consolidated Results of Continuing Operations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Revenue $ 402,808 $ 376,483 7.0% $ 736,988 $ 703,323 4.8%
Operating expenses:
Direct operating expenses 185,530 167,168 11.0% 354,059 322,222 9.9%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 65,711 64,427 2.0% 129,373 123,699 4.6%
Corporate expenses 31,123 34,047 (8.6)% 50,903 63,921 (20.4)%
Depreciation and amortization 43,335 42,501 2.0% 86,339 84,553 2.1%
Other operating income, net (315) (90) (6,100) (3,387)
Operating income 77,424 68,430 122,414 112,315
Interest expense, net (96,026) (100,120) (195,387) (201,815)
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt 28,796 — 28,796 (2,393)
Other income (expense), net 663 449 912 (8,400)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 10,857 (31,241) (43,265) (100,293)
Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to continuing operations (4,526) 5,827 (5,706) 5,655
Income (loss) from continuing operations 6,331 (25,414) (48,971) (94,638)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 4,318 (13,220) 122,833 (33,079)
Consolidated net income (loss) 10,649 (38,634) 73,862 (127,717)
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 1,129 536 1,833 1,120
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 9,520 $ (39,170) $ 72,029 § (128,837)
Consolidated Revenue

Consolidated revenue increased by $26.3 million, or 7.0%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $33.7 million, or 4.8%, for the six months ended June 30,
2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by the new roadside billboard contract with the Metropolitan Transportation Authority
(“MTA”) in the America segment and strong advertising demand in the Airports segment.

Consolidated revenue growth in both periods was attributable to increases in digital revenue. The table below provides additional information on consolidated digital
revenue:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Digital revenue $ 177,308 $ 150,737 17.6% $ 316,189 $ 277,566 13.9%
Percent of total consolidated revenue 44.0 % 40.0 % 42.9 % 39.5%

Consolidated Direct Operating Expenses

Consolidated direct operating expenses increased by $18.4 million, or 11.0%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $31.8 million, or 9.9%, for the six
months ended June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by higher site lease expense, reflecting the impact of the MTA
contract and increased Airports revenue. For the six-month period, the increase in site lease expense also included the impact of lower rent abatements.
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The table below provides additional information on certain drivers of consolidated direct operating expenses:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Site lease expense $ 154,030 $ 137,532 12.0% $ 293,603 $ 264,393 11.0%
Reductions of rent expense on lease and non-lease contracts from
rent abatements 1,121 814 37.7% 1,420 5,628 (74.8)%
Restructuring and other costs — 344 (100.0)% 5 978 (99.5)%

Consolidated Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses

Consolidated SG&A expenses increased by $1.3 million, or 2.0%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $5.7 million, or 4.6%, for the six months ended
June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by higher employee compensation, reflecting a larger sales headcount. For the six-
month period, the increase also reflected higher credit loss expense.

These increases were partially offset by lower restructuring and other costs, as the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 included expenses related to the
Company’s decision to reduce the scale of its operations in Singapore. The table below provides additional information on restructuring and other costs included within SG&A
expenses:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Restructuring and other costs $ — § 443 (100.0)% $ — 3 1,435 (100.0)%

Corporate Expenses

Corporate expenses decreased by $2.9 million, or 8.6%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $13.0 million, or 20.4%, for the six months ended June 30,
2025, compared to the same periods in 2024.

The decrease for the three-month period was primarily driven by certain legal costs recorded in the prior year related to property and casualty settlements, as well as
lower employee compensation related to insurance benefits and bonuses. Excluding share-based compensation, these cost decreases totaled $4.4 million.

The decrease for the six-month period was primarily attributable to the receipt of $10.1 million in insurance proceeds in the current year, related to the ongoing
recovery of certain amounts previously incurred in connection with a resolved legal matter. These proceeds are reflected in “Restructuring and other costs (reversals)” in the
table below. The six-month comparison also reflects the absence of certain prior-year legal costs related to property and casualty settlements and lower employee compensation
as noted above. Excluding share-based compensation, these cost decreases totaled $6.0 million.

The table below provides additional information on certain drivers of corporate expenses:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Share-based compensation expense(!) $ 7,359 $ 6,666 10.4% $ 12,783  $ 11,260 13.5%
Restructuring and other costs (reversals)® 755 1,062 (28.9)% (7,626) 2,820 NM

(M Excludes share-based compensation expense (reversal) for employees of discontinued operations.

@ Percentage changes that are so large as to not be meaningful have been designated as “NM.”
Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by $0.8 million, or 2.0%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $1.8 million, or 2.1%, for the six months ended
June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by higher estimated costs for asset retirement obligations, which are capitalized
and depreciated over the asset’s useful life.
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Other Operating Income, Net

Other operating income, net, was $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $6.1 million and $3.4 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The year-over-year increase was primarily driven by lower transaction costs related to structural initiatives and
financial advisory services. In the three-month period, this benefit was largely offset by lower net gains from the sale or disposal of operating assets. Refer to Note 11 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further detail.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, decreased by $4.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $6.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to
the same periods in 2024. The decreases were primarily driven by the repurchase of a portion of our Senior Notes in the second quarter of 2025 and lower average interest rates
on our Term Loan Facility.

Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, we recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $28.8 million related to the repurchase of a portion of our
Senior Notes in open market transactions at a discount.

During the six months ended June 30, 2024, we recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.4 million related to the prepayment and amendment of the Term
Loan Facility.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net, is generally driven by equity in earnings of non-consolidated affiliates and totaled $0.7 million and $0.4 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $0.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025.

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2024, other expense, net, of $8.4 million was primarily due to $10.0 million of debt modification expense related to the
issuance of the 7.875% Senior Secured Notes and the associated prepayment and refinancing of the Term Loan Facility.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense) Attributable to Continuing Operations

The effective tax rates for continuing operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 were 41.7% and (13.2)%, respectively, compared to 18.7% and 5.6%
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively. The rates were primarily impacted by a valuation allowance recorded against current-period deferred tax assets,
primarily related to interest expense carryforwards, due to uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to realize those assets in future periods.

America Results of Operations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Revenue $ 303,111  § 290,207 4.4% $ 557,304 $ 539,984 3.2%
Direct operating expenses(! 120,394 109,065 10.4% 232,814 214,447 8.6%
SG&A expenses'” 55,116 54,269 1.6% 109,023 103,571 5.3%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA 127,601 126,980 0.5% 215,472 222,444 3.D)%

M Includes restructuring and other costs that are excluded from Segment Adjusted EBITDA.
America Revenue

America revenue increased by $12.9 million, or 4.4%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $17.3 million, or 3.2%, for the six months ended June 30,
2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by the MTA contract and improved performance in the San Francisco/Bay Area market.
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By format, growth was driven by digital revenue, reflecting the addition of new digital billboards to our portfolio, including boards operated under the MTA contract,
and increased demand. The table below provides additional information on America digital revenue:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Digital revenue $ 113,800 § 102,427 11.1% $ 203,424 $ 186,646 9.0%
Percent of total segment revenue 375 % 353 % 36.5% 34.6 %

By sales channel, the increases were primarily driven by local sales, reflecting continued strength in local advertising demand across various markets. National sales
accounted for 33.7% and 35.0% of America revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and 34.0% and 34.8% for the six months ended June 30,
2025 and 2024, respectively. The remainder was derived from local sales.

America Direct Operating Expenses

America direct operating expenses increased by $11.3 million, or 10.4%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $18.4 million, or 8.6%, for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by higher site lease expense, largely attributable to the MTA contract. The
table below provides information on America site lease expense:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Site lease expense $ 94,115 §$ 84,703 11.1% $ 182,450 $ 167,551 8.9%

America SG&A Expenses

America SG&A expenses increased by $0.8 million, or 1.6%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $5.5 million, or 5.3%, for the six months ended
June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by higher employee compensation, reflecting a larger sales headcount. For the six-
month period, the increase also included higher credit loss expense due to a favorable adjustment in the prior-year period.

Airports Results of Operations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Revenue $ 99,685 $ 86,219 15.6% $ 179,668 $ 163,145 10.1%
Direct operating expenses" 65,122 57,7157 12.8% 121,231 106,824 13.5%
SG&A expenses" 10,216 9,382 8.9% 19,777 18,255 8.3%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA 24,347 19,082 27.6% 38,660 38,164 1.3%

M Includes restructuring and other costs that are excluded from Segment Adjusted EBITDA.

Airports Revenue

Airports revenue increased by $13.5 million, or 15.6%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $16.5 million, or 10.1%, for the six months ended June 30,
2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were driven by strong advertising demand, most notably at the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, San

Francisco and Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta airports.

Overall, strong growth in digital revenue was partially offset by a decline in print revenue. The table below provides additional information on Airports digital revenue:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Digital revenue $ 63,508 $ 48,310 31.5% $ 112,765 $ 90,920 24.0%
Percent of total segment revenue 63.7 % 56.0 % 62.8 % 55.7%

28



Table of Contents

National sales accounted for 59.3% and 57.7% of Airports revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and 61.6% and 56.5% for the six
months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The remainder was derived from local sales.

Airports Direct Operating Expenses

Airports direct operating expenses increased by $7.4 million, or 12.8%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $14.4 million, or 13.5%, for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were driven by higher site lease expense, primarily reflecting revenue growth, with the increase
for the six-month period also impacted by lower rent abatements.

The table below provides additional information on Airports site lease expense and rent abatements:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30, % June 30, %
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
Site lease expense $ 59915 $ 52,827 13.4% $ 111,153  $ 96,840 14.8%
Reductions of rent expense on lease and non-lease contracts from
rent abatements 1,121 799 40.3% 1,420 5,598 (74.6)%
Airports SG&A Expenses

Airports SG&A expenses increased by $0.8 million, or 8.9%, for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and by $1.5 million, or 8.3%, for the six months ended
June 30, 2025, compared to the same periods in 2024. These increases were primarily driven by higher employee compensation, reflecting a larger sales headcount and pay
increases.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations improved significantly year over year, primarily reflecting cost reductions and, for the year-to-date period, a net gain recognized
on international business sales completed in the first quarter of 2025.

For the three months ended June 30, 2025, income from discontinued operations was $4.3 million, reflecting results from our businesses in Spain and Brazil, partially
offset by a $7.6 million loss on sold and held-for-sale businesses, primarily driven by a fair value adjustment for the Brazil business.

For the six months ended June 30, 2025, income from discontinued operations was $122.8 million, primarily driven by a $132.0 million net gain, mainly resulting
from business sales completed in the first quarter. This period also includes results from our businesses in Spain and Brazil, as well as from our former businesses in Mexico,
Peru and Chile, and our former Europe-North segment through their respective sale dates, along with interest expense on the CCIBV Term Loan and a loss on debt
extinguishment related to its prepayment.

By comparison, discontinued operations generated losses of $13.2 million and $33.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively. These
periods reflect the results from our businesses in Spain and Brazil, as well as the businesses sold in 2025. The 2024 periods also included several expenses not incurred in 2025,
including depreciation and amortization (which ceased upon held-for-sale classification), impairment charges on certain long-lived assets in Latin America, and higher interest
expense and transaction costs related to international sales processes.

Refer to Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item | of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional details.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Liquidity Analysis
Short-Term Liquidity

Our primary cash requirements include working capital to support business operations, capital expenditures and debt service obligations. We typically meet these
needs through cash on hand, internally generated cash flow from our operations and, when necessary, borrowings under our credit facilities. In the first half of 2025, we also
received cash proceeds from the sales of our former Europe-North segment businesses and certain of our Latin American businesses. We believe these sources of liquidity will
be sufficient to meet our cash requirements for at least the next 12 months.
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Long-Term Liquidity

Our long-term cash requirements will depend on various factors, including the growth of our business, investments in digital conversions and new technologies, and
the pursuit and outcome of strategic opportunities.

We also have long-term cash requirements related to the repayment of our outstanding debt, which now extends through 2033 following a recent refinancing. On
August 4, 2025, we closed a private offering of $1,150.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 and $900.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 7.500% Senior Secured Notes due 2033. At closing, we deposited an amount equal to the net proceeds from the offering, together with cash on hand, with the trustee
to fund the full redemption of our 5.125% and 9.000% Senior Secured Notes, in aggregate principal amounts of $1,250.0 million and $750.0 million, respectively. As a result,
the indentures governing the redeemed notes were satisfied and discharged.

As part of our long-term financing and investment strategy, we have repurchased, and may from time to time in the future repurchase, outstanding notes through open
market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or other means. These repurchases could materially impact our liquidity, results of operations or leverage ratios, which in
turn could affect our ability to comply with the covenants in our debt agreements. In the second quarter of 2025, we repurchased $229.7 million aggregate principal amount of
our Senior Notes in open market transactions for a total cash payment of $203.4 million, including accrued interest and related fees. Any future repurchase decisions will
depend on factors such as prevailing market conditions, our liquidity needs and contractual restrictions, and the amounts involved may be material.

We believe that our sources of funds will be adequate to meet our long-term cash requirements. However, our ability to meet these cash requirements through cash
from operations will depend on our future operating results and financial performance, which are subject to significant uncertainty and may be affected by factors beyond our
control, including macroeconomic conditions, interest rates, inflation, increased tariffs, retaliatory trade policies, volatility in global trade markets, and geopolitical events such
as the ongoing conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East. Furthermore, our significant interest payment obligations reduce our financial flexibility, make us more vulnerable to
changes in operating performance and economic downturns generally, and reduce our liquidity over time.

We regularly consider and discuss potential financing alternatives with our lenders and other parties. In the future, we may seek supplemental liquidity through
additional financing from banks or other lenders; offerings of public or private debt, equity or equity-linked securities; strategic partnerships; or a combination of these. From
time to time, we have explored, and expect to continue to explore, a variety of transactions to improve our liquidity and/or refinance our indebtedness. However, there is no
assurance that we will be able to secure financing alternatives, complete liquidity-generating transactions or refinance debt in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us in
the future, due to market conditions, our financial condition, liquidity constraints or other factors that may be beyond our control. Even if financing alternatives are available,
we may not find them suitable or offered at reasonable interest rates, and the terms of our existing or future debt agreements may limit our ability to secure financing on
favorable terms or at all.

If we cannot generate sufficient cash from operations or secure sources of supplemental liquidity as needed, we could face substantial liquidity challenges, which could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and ability to meet our obligations.

Cash Requirements
Working Capital Needs

We utilize working capital to fund our operations and meet certain contractual obligations, including commitments under site leases and other non-cancelable
contracts.

A significant cash requirement is site lease expense, which include payments for land or space used by our advertising displays. These costs consist of both minimum
guaranteed payments and revenue-sharing arrangements under lease and non-lease contracts. For the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, we incurred site lease expense
for continuing operations of $293.6 million and $264.4 million, respectively, which are included in “Direct operating expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Income
(Loss). During the six months ended June 30, 2024, we received $5.6 million of rent abatements. Rent abatements totaled $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025
and are not expected to continue.
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Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions

We made the following capital expenditures during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024:

(In thousands) Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024

America $ 18,646 $ 22,273
Airports 4,793 3,446
Other 52 13
Corporate 2,567 1,883
Capital expenditures for continuing operations 26,058 27,615
Capital expenditures for discontinued operations" 16,022 24,213
Total capital expenditures®® $ 42,080 $ 51,828

Capital expenditures for discontinued operations decreased following the sales of our former Europe-North segment businesses and certain Latin American businesses in the first quarter of
2025.

@ As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, we had accrued but unpaid capital expenditures for continuing operations of $3.5 million and $4.6 million, respectively. For discontinued operations, accrued
but unpaid capital expenditures were $1.3 million and $6.9 million, respectively.

®  Excludes asset acquisitions.

During the six months ended June 30, 2024, we acquired out-of-home advertising assets, primarily permits and digital billboard structures, in our America segment for
cash consideration of $8.8 million. No asset acquisitions were made during the six months ended June 30, 2025.

Debt Activity, Service Obligations and Covenants
Debt Activity

In March 2024, we issued $865.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.875% Senior Secured Notes and used a portion of the proceeds to prepay $835.0 million of
borrowings outstanding under the Term Loan Facility. At the same time, we amended the Senior Secured Credit Agreement to refinance the remaining $425.0 million balance
of the Term Loan Facility and extend its maturity date, subject to certain conditions. The refinanced term loans were issued at a 1% discount, and proceeds, along with cash on
hand, were used to repay the original term loans and $14.9 million of accrued interest. Related transaction fees totaled $15.4 million, including $14.6 million paid during the six
months ended June 30, 2024.

Also in March 2024, CCIBV entered into a $375.0 million CCIBV Term Loan Facility, issued at a 1% discount. Proceeds and cash on hand were used to redeem the
$375.0 million CCIBV Senior Secured Notes and pay $11.8 million of accrued interest. Related transaction fees totaled $5.8 million, including $4.2 million paid during the six
months ended June 30, 2024, and $0.4 million paid during the six months ended June 30, 2025.

On March 31, 2025, we used a portion of the net proceeds from the sale of our Europe-North segment businesses to fully prepay the principal amount of the CCIBV
Term Loan Facility, along with $11.9 million of accrued interest. Upon repayment, CCIBV and its guarantors, and all collateral granted as security under the credit agreement,
were released, and the credit agreement was terminated.

In the second quarter of 2025, we repurchased $95.7 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.750% Senior Notes and $134.1 million aggregate principal amount of
our 7.500% Senior Notes in open market transactions at a discount. The total cash payment was $203.4 million, including accrued interest of $4.0 million and related fees. The
repurchased notes are currently held by the Company and have not been canceled.

Debt Service Obligations

During the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, we paid cash interest of $210.2 million and $218.5 million, respectively. The $8.3 million decrease primarily
reflects the impact of recent refinancing activity and related changes in interest payment timing and rates.

Following the prepayment of the CCIBV Term Loan Facility, the second-quarter repurchase of Senior Notes, and the August 2025 refinancing, we expect cash interest
payments of approximately $184 million for the remainder of 2025 and approximately $400 million in 2026, assuming no further prepayments, refinancings, new debt
issuances or additional repurchases.
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On August 4, 2025, we closed a private offering of new senior secured notes and used the proceeds, together with cash on hand, to fund the full redemption of our
5.125% Senior Secured Notes and 9.000% Senior Secured Notes. As a result, the indentures governing these notes were satisfied and discharged. Following these redemptions,
our next scheduled debt maturity will be in April 2028, when $899.3 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.750% Senior Notes becomes due.

For additional details on our long-term debt, refer to Note 5 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q.
Debt Covenants

Our debt agreements contain certain covenants, as described in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K. As of June 30, 2025, we were in compliance with all applicable
covenants.

The Senior Secured Credit Agreement includes a springing financial covenant that applies only if the Revolving Credit Facility has an outstanding balance and
undrawn letters of credit exceed $10 million. If triggered, the covenant requires that we maintain a first lien net leverage ratio of less than 7.10 to 1.00. As of June 30, 2025,
these conditions were not met, and the covenant was not in effect. Accordingly, we have not presented the first lien net leverage ratio calculation in this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q. Refer to the “Credit Facilities” section below for additional information on facility borrowings and excess availability as of June 30, 2025.

Sources of Capital and Liquidity
Cash On Hand

As of June 30, 2025, we had $147.1 million of cash and cash equivalents, including $8.5 million held by discontinued operations (Spain and Brazil) and $4.1 million
held by continuing operations subsidiaries outside the U.S., primarily in the Caribbean. At present, any remaining excess foreign cash could be repatriated with minimal U.S.
tax consequences, and dividend distributions from international subsidiaries are not expected to trigger U.S. federal income tax liability.

Cash Flow from Operations

During the six months ended June 30, 2025, net cash provided by operating activities was $2.3 million, compared to a net cash outflow of $4.0 million during the same
period in 2024. The improvement was primarily driven by the receipt of $10.1 million in insurance proceeds related to the ongoing recovery of certain amounts previously
incurred in connection with a resolved legal matter, and a reduction in cash interest payments.

Dispositions

During the six months ended June 30, 2025, we received net cash proceeds of $589.3 million from the sale of businesses, net of direct transaction costs paid and cash
transferred with the businesses. This includes $12.6 million from the sale of our businesses in Mexico, Peru and Chile, and $576.7 million from the sale of the businesses
constituting our Europe-North segment, prior to the prepayment of the CCIBV Term Loan Facility and related accrued interest.

Additionally, we received $10.0 million and $10.3 million in cash proceeds from asset dispositions during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

We expect to receive approximately $14.7 million in cash proceeds from the sale of our business in Brazil (based on the prevailing exchange rate as of June 30, 2025),
subject to certain customary adjustments. The transaction is expected to close later in 2025, pending regulatory approval and the satisfaction of other customary closing
conditions.

Credit Facilities

We have access to a Revolving Credit Facility and a Receivables-Based Credit Facility, each of which includes sub-facilities for letters of credit and short-term
borrowings. On June 12, 2025, we amended both the Senior Secured Credit Agreement (which governs the Revolving Credit Facility) and the Receivables-Based Credit
Agreement to, among other things, extend the maturity dates of the related commitments to June 12, 2030 and revise the borrowing limits of the respective facilities, as detailed
in footnote (1) to the table below.
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The table below presents borrowings and excess availability under these credit facilities as of June 30, 2025:

Revolving Credit Receivables-Based
(in millions) Facility Credit Facility Total Credit Facilities®
Borrowing limit" $ 100.0 $ 2000 $ 300.0
Borrowings outstanding — — —
Letters of credit outstanding® 6.8 81.2 88.1
Excess availability® $ 932 $ 118.8 $ 211.9

M In connection with the June 2025 amendments, the Revolving Credit Facility commitment was reduced from $115.8 million to $100.0 million, and the maximum commitment under the

Receivables-Based Credit Facility was increased from $175.0 million to $200.0 million (capped by a borrowing base that fluctuates based on our accounts receivable balance, as calculated
under the Receivables-Based Credit Agreement).
@ As of June 30, 2025, the letter of credit outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility related to our business in Spain.

& Due to rounding, totals may not sum exactly as presented.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that impact the
reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, in our financial statements. These estimates and judgments
are based on historical experience and other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. We regularly evaluate these estimates as they form the basis for
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses, that may not be readily apparent from other sources. For a
detailed discussion of the critical accounting estimates, management's judgments and assumptions, and the potential effects if actual results differ from these assumptions,
please refer to Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that reflect our expectations or beliefs regarding future events, including, but not limited to:
our business plans and strategies; the effects of tariffs and views on the macroeconomic environment; expectations regarding the sales of our businesses in Brazil and Spain,
including the expected proceeds; expectations about certain markets and potential improvements; industry and market trends; the anticipated effects of our new senior secured
notes offering and notes redemptions; and our liquidity. These forward-looking statements, including expectations and projections about future matters, are made under the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We caution that such statements involve numerous risks and uncertainties and are subject to variables
that could impact our future performance. These statements are based on management’s views and assumptions at the time they are made and are not guarantees of future
performance. Actual future events and performance may differ materially from the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements. We do not undertake any
obligation to update forward-looking statements.
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A variety of factors could materially affect future outcomes, including, but not limited to: continued economic uncertainty, an economic slowdown or a recession,
including as a result of increased and proposed tariffs, retaliatory trade regulations and policies, and uncertainty in the financial and capital markets; our ability to generate
enough cash to service our debt obligations and fund our operations, business strategy and capital expenditures; the impact of our substantial indebtedness, including the effect
of leverage on our financial position and earnings; the impact of the issuance of the new senior secured notes and notes redemptions on our interest expense, liquidity and debt
maturity profile; the difficulty, cost and time required to implement our strategy, and the fact that we may not realize the anticipated benefits therefrom; volatility of our stock
price; our ability to continue to comply with the applicable listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange, including the minimum bid price requirement, and any
subsequent failure to timely resume compliance within any applicable cure period; changes in laws or regulations and tax structures; our ability to obtain and renew key
contracts with municipalities, transit authorities and private landlords; we face intense competition and our market share is subject to change; regulations and consumer
concerns regarding privacy, digital services, data protection and artificial intelligence; breaches of our information security; failure to accurately estimate industry and Company
forecasts and to maintain bookings; restrictions on out-of-home advertising of certain products; environmental, health, safety and land use laws and regulations; the impact of
the potential sales of our businesses in Brazil and Spain; the impact of the recent dispositions of certain of our businesses in Europe and Latin America, as well as other
strategic transactions or acquisitions; third-party claims of intellectual property infringement, misappropriation or other violation against us or our suppliers; the impacts on our
stock price as a result of future sales of common stock, or the perception thereof, and dilution resulting from additional capital raised through the sale of common stock or other
equity-linked instruments; restrictions in our debt agreements that limit operational flexibility; challenges regarding our use of artificial intelligence to enhance operational
efficiency and support decision-making across key areas of our business; the effect of credit ratings downgrades; our reliance on senior management and key personnel;
continued scrutiny and shifting expectations from government regulators, municipalities, investors, lenders, customers, activists and other stakeholders; and other factors set
forth in our SEC filings.

This list is not exhaustive and is intended for illustrative purposes only. Accordingly, all forward-looking statements should be evaluated with the understanding of
their inherent uncertainty.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks from changes in interest rates and inflation, and future fluctuations in these factors could affect our financial results. However, there
have been no material changes in our market risk disclosures from those provided in Item 7A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), under the supervision and with the participation of
Company management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in our reports filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure, and is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that, as of June 30, 2025,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding our legal proceedings, refer to Note 6 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Information regarding our risk factors is disclosed in Item 1A of our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the period, we withheld shares of our common stock from employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations related to the vesting of restricted stock units. These
shares were withheld at fair market value on the vesting date and recorded as additions back to treasury stock. The Company did not otherwise repurchase any of its equity
securities during the period.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Insider Trading Arrangements

During the quarter ended June 30, 2025, none of our directors or officers (as defined in Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) adopted or
terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or a “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” (each as defined in Item 408(a) and (c) of Regulation S-K).
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Amended Certificate of Incorporation of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Clear Channel Outdoor
Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2019).

32 Certificate of Amendment to the Amended Certificate of Incorporation of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on May 24, 2024).

33 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Clear Channel Outdoor
Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2019).

4.1 Indenture, dated as of August 4, 2025, by and among_Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.,_the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee and as collateral agent, governing the 7.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2025).

4.2 Form of 7.125% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2025).

4.3 Indenture, dated as of August 4, 2025, by _and among_Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee and as collateral agent, governing the 7.500% Senior Secured Notes due 2033 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2025).

44 Form of 7.500% Senior Secured Notes due 2033 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2025).

10.1 Second Amendment to Receivables-Based Credit Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2025, among_Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., the other
borrowers party thereto,_the lenders party thereto, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent and each
other party_thereto (including Annex A, which is a conformed copy_of the Receivables-Based Credit Agreement) (incorporated by _reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2025).

10.2 Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2025, among Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., the revolving credit lenders party
thereto, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent and each other party thereto (including Annex A,
which is a conformed copy of the Credit Agreement)_(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2025).

10.3* Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. 2012 Third Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan.

10.4 Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2025, by and between Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. and Lynn
Feldman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2025).

31.1%* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2% Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a)_under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1%* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

32.2%%* Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL).

* Filed herewith.

*x Furnished herewith.
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Signatures
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.
CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC.

Date: August 5, 2025 /s/ JASON A. DILGER
Jason A. Dilger
Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 10.3

Grantee: “participant name”
Grant Date: “grant date”
CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC.
2012 THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

THIS PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made as of “grant date” (the “Grant Date”) by and
between Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and “participant name” (the “Grantee”), evidences
the grant by the Company of an award (the “Award”) of performance stock units (“PSUs”) to the Grantee on such date and the Grantee’s
acceptance of the Award in accordance with the provisions of the Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. 2012 Third Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”). All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to
them as set forth in the Plan. The Company and the Grantee agree as follows:

1. Grant of Award. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan, the Company hereby grants to the Grantee the
Award, giving the Grantee the conditional right to receive a target number of shares of Common Stock of the Company (the “Shares”) equal to
“Target shares granted” (the “Target Shares”). The Award of PSUs will vest (i) as to 65%, based upon achievement of the Relative TSR
Performance Conditions (as defined below, and the PSUs subject to the Relative TSR Performance Conditions, the “Relative TSR PSUs”) and (ii)
as to the remaining 35%, based upon achievement of the ULFCF Performance Conditions (as defined below, and the PSUs subject to ULFCF
Performance Conditions, the “ULFCF PSUs”). Depending on the level of performance determined to be attained with respect to the Performance
Conditions (as defined below), the number of Shares that may be earned hereunder in respect of this Award may range from 0% to 150% of the
Target Shares (the “Earned Shares™); provided, that the number of Earned Shares in respect of the ULFCF PSUs shall be subject to further
adjustment based on the CAGR Multiplier (as defined below).

2. Earning and Vesting of Awards.

(a) Except as otherwise set forth in Section 5 below, and subject to the provisions of this Section 2, the PSUs subject to this
Award shall vest and become Earned Shares, or be forfeited, at the conclusion of the Performance Period (as defined below) if, and to the
extent, the Performance Conditions are satisfied and the Grantee remains employed by the Company through April 1, 2028 (the “Vesting
Date”).

6)] For purposes of this Agreement, “Performance Period” shall mean the period commencing on April 1, 2025 and
ending on March 31, 2028.

(i)  For purposes of this Agreement, “Performance Conditions” shall mean the Relative TSR Performance Conditions
and the ULFCF Performance Conditions, collectively.




(iii)  For purposes of this Agreement, the “Relative TSR Performance Conditions” shall mean, the Company’s “Relative

TSR” (as defined below) as follows:

Relative TSR for the Performance Period Vesting Level as % of Target
Shares Underlying Relative TSR
PSUs
75th Percentile or Higher

Maximum In Relative TSR to Peer Group 150%
50th Percentile

Target in Relative TSR to Peer Group 100%
25th Percentile

Threshold in Relative TSR to Peer Group 50%

(iv)  For purposes of this Agreement, the “ULFCF Performance Conditions” shall mean, the Company’s “Cumulative
ULFCF” (as defined below) achievement during the Performance Period and the CAGR (as defined below) achievement over the

Performance Period as follows:

Cumulative ULFCEF for the Performance Vesting Level as % of Target
Period Shares Underlying ULFCF PSUs*

) Cumulative ULFCEF that is at least 110% of the

Maximum Cumulative ULFCF Goal 150%
Cumulative ULFCF that is at least 97% but less

Target than 103% of the Cumulative ULFCF Goal 100%

Cumulative ULFCEF that is at least 85%
Threshold of the Cumulative ULFCF Goal 50%

*Payout of ULFCF PSUs to be multiplied by the “CAGR Multiplier” as set forth in the table below based on
achievement of CAGR for the Performance Period:

CAGR Achievement CAGR Multiplier
Greater than or equal to +15% 1.5x
Greater than -5% but lower than +5% 1.0x
Less than or equal to -15% 0.5x




(b) To the extent that Relative TSR for the Performance Period is between specified vesting levels set forth above, the portion
of the Relative TSR PSUs that shall become vested based on Relative TSR performance shall be determined on a pro rata basis using
straight line interpolation; provided that the maximum portion of the Relative TSR PSUs that may become vested based on Relative TSR
for the Performance Period shall not exceed 150% of the Target Shares underlying the Relative TSR PSUs. To the extent that the Relative
TSR as of the end of the Performance Period is below the 25th percentile, all Relative TSR PSUs awarded pursuant to this Agreement shall
be immediately forfeited without consideration and the Grantee shall have no further rights to that portion of the Award. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, to the extent the Company’s actual TSR over the Performance Period is less than 0%, the maximum payout of Relative TSR
PSUs shall not be greater than 100% of Target Shares underlying the Relative TSR PSUs.

(©) To the extent that the Cumulative ULFCF for the Performance Period is between the specified vesting levels set forth above,
the portion of the ULFCF PSUs that shall become vested based on the Cumulative ULFCF shall be determined on a pro rata basis using
straight line interpolation; provided that the maximum portion of the ULFCF PSUs that may become vested based on the Cumulative
ULFCF for the Performance Period shall not exceed 150% of the Target Shares underlying the ULFCF PSUs; provided, further, that the
foregoing calculation is subject to further adjustment based on the CAGR Multiplier. To the extent CAGR achievement is between the
specified levels set forth above, the CAGR Multiplier shall be determined on a pro rata basis using straight line interpolation. To the extent
that the Cumulative ULFCF as of the end of the Performance Period is below 85%, all ULFCF PSUs awarded pursuant to this Agreement
shall be immediately forfeited without consideration and the Grantee shall have no further rights to that portion of the Award.

(d) Certain Definitions (Relative TSR PSUs).

6)] For purposes of this Agreement, “Beginning Stock Price” means with respect to the Company or any other company
in the Peer Group, the average of the closing sales prices for a share of common stock of the applicable company on the U.S.
national securities exchange on which such stock principally trades for the forty (40) trading days immediately following the
beginning of the Performance Period, as reported in the Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Committee deems reliable.

(i1) For purposes of this Agreement, “Ending Stock Price” means with respect to the Company or any other company in
the Peer Group, the average of the closing sales prices for a share of common stock of the applicable company on the U.S. national
securities exchange on which such stock principally trades for the forty (40) trading days immediately preceding the conclusion of
the Performance Period, as reported in the Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Committee deems reliable.

(iii)  For purposes of this Agreement, “Peer Group” means those companies that are included in the S&P 600 on the first
day of the Performance Period, excluding any such company (i) that files for bankruptcy at any time during the Performance Period
or (ii) that ceases to be a publicly traded Company for any reason (including as a result of a merger) during the Performance Period.



(iv)  For purposes of this Agreement, “Relative TSR” shall mean the percentile rank of the Company’s TSR compared to
the TSR of the Peer Group over the Performance Period.

V) For purposes of this Agreement, “Total Shareholder Return” or “TSR” means with respect to the Company and each
of the companies in the Peer Group, the difference of (A) the quotient of (i)(1) the applicable Ending Stock Price plus (2) dividends
paid with respect to an ex-dividend date occurring during the period over which the Beginning Stock Price is calculated and during
the remainder of the Performance Period (assuming dividend reinvestment on such ex-dividend date), divided by (ii)(1) the
applicable Beginning Stock Price plus (2) dividends paid with respect to an ex-dividend date occurring during the period over
which the Beginning Stock Price is calculated (assuming dividend reinvestment on such ex-dividend date); minus (B) 1.00. For
purposes of this definition, any dividend paid in cash will be valued at its cash amount and any dividend paid in securities with a
readily ascertainable fair market value shall be valued at the market value of the securities as of the ex-dividend date.

(e) Certain Definitions (ULFCF PSUs).

6)] For purposes of this Agreement, “Adjusted EBITDA” has the meaning as defined and reported in the Company’s
SEC filings.

(i1) For purposes of this Agreement, “CAGR” means a percentage equal to the Company’s compound annual growth rate
based on the value of a share of Common Stock of the Company, which shall be calculated based on the formula below, with (x)
EV (Ending Value) to equal the Ending Stock Price and (y) BV (Beginning Value) to equal the Beginning Stock Price.

EV 1/3
CAGR(%) = (ﬁ) —1]|x100

(i)  For purposes of this Agreement, “CAGR Multiplier” means the applicable multiplier that corresponds to the
percentage of CAGR achievement, determined in accordance with Section 2(a)(iv) above.

(iv)  For purposes of this Agreement, “CapEx” means “capital expenditures for continuing operations” or “capital
expenditures” once the Company ceases to report discontinued operations, in each case, as reported in the Company’s SEC filings.

%) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cumulative ULFCF” means Adjusted EBITDA less CapEx, measured over the
Performance Period.

(vi)  For purposes of this Agreement, “Cumulative ULFCF Goal” means $1.349B; provided, that, the Cumulative ULFCF
Goal may be adjusted from time to time during the Performance Period to account for certain non-recurring events, as determined
to be appropriate in the Committee’s sole discretion.




3. Dividend Equivalents. The Award is granted together with dividend equivalent rights, which dividend equivalent rights will be (a)
paid in the same form (cash or stock) in which such dividends are paid to the stockholders and (b) subject to the same vesting and forfeiture
provisions as set forth in Section 2. Any payments made pursuant to dividend equivalent rights will be paid in either cash or in Shares, or any
combination thereof, effective as of the date of settlement under Section 4 below.

4. Payment of Award. The Company shall, as soon as practicable upon the Vesting Date (but in no event later than the date that is sixty
(60) days after the Vesting Date), issue (if necessary) and transfer to the Grantee the Earned Shares, and shall deliver to the Grantee or have
deposited in the Grantee’s brokerage account with the Company’s transfer agent or designated third-party administrator such Earned Shares, at the
Company’s election either electronically or represented by a certificate or certificates therefor, registered in the Grantee’s name. No Shares will be
issued pursuant to this Award unless and until all legal requirements applicable to the issuance or transfer of such Shares have been complied with
to the satisfaction of the Company.

5. Termination of Employment.

(a) If the Grantee’s employment or service is terminated due to death or Disability (as defined herein) and such death or
Disability occurs before the end of the Performance Period, then the Award shall be deemed to vest and become Earned Shares at a number
of Shares equal to the Target Shares.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean (i) if the Grantee’s employment or service with the Company is subject to the
terms of an employment or other service agreement between such Grantee and the Company, which agreement includes a definition of
“Disability”, the term “Disability” shall have the meaning set forth in such agreement; and (ii) in all other cases, the term “Disability” shall
mean a physical or mental infirmity which impairs the Grantee’s ability to perform substantially his or her duties for a period of one
hundred eighty (180) consecutive days.

(b) If the Grantee’s employment or service is terminated due to Retirement (as defined herein) and such Retirement occurs
before the Vesting Date, for purposes of this Agreement only, then a portion (the “Pro-Rata Portion”) of the Target Shares shall remain
outstanding and eligible to vest and become Earned Shares in accordance with and subject to the requirements of Section 2 hereof. If such
termination occurs (i) on or before April 1, 2026, the Pro Rata Portion shall be equal to one-third (1/3) of the Target Shares, (ii) after April
1, 2026, but on or before April 1, 2027, the Pro Rata Portion shall be equal to two-thirds (2/3) of the Target Shares and (iii) after April 1,
2027, the Pro-Rata Portion shall be equal to the Target Shares. Any portion of the Award in excess of the Pro-Rata Portion shall be
immediately forfeited without consideration and the Grantee shall have no further rights to such portion.



For purposes of this Agreement, “Retirement” shall mean the Grantee’s termination of employment with the Company for any reasons
other than death, Disability, by the Company for Cause or pursuant to Section 6(a) or Section 6(b), on or after the date on which the sum of
his/her (i) full years of age (measured as of his/her last birthday preceding the date of termination of employment or service) and (ii) full
years of service with the Company (or any parent or subsidiary) measured from his/her date of hire (or re-hire, if later), is equal at least
seventy (70); provided, that, the Grantee must have attained at least the age of sixty (60) and completed at least five (5) full years of
service with the Company (or any parent or subsidiary) prior to the date of his/her resignation. Any disputes relating to whether the
Grantee is eligible for Retirement under this Agreement, including, without limitation, years of service, shall be settled by the Committee
in its sole discretion.

(©) If the termination of the Grantee’s employment or service is for any other reason, the then unvested portion of the Award
shall be immediately forfeited without consideration and the Grantee shall have no further rights to such unvested portion of the Award
hereunder. The Grantee’s status as an employee or other service-provider shall not be considered terminated in the case of a leave of
absence agreed to in writing by the Company (including, but not limited to, military and sick leave); provided, that, such leave is for a
period of not more than three (3) months or re-employment or re-engagement upon expiration of such leave is guaranteed by contract or
statute.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or the Plan to the contrary:

6)] If it is determined by the Committee that the Grantee engaged (or is engaging in) any activity that is harmful to the
business or reputation of the Company (or any parent or subsidiary), including, without limitation, any “Competitive Activity” (as
defined below) or conduct prejudicial to or in conflict with the Company (or any parent or subsidiary) or any material breach of a
contractual obligation to the Company (or any parent or subsidiary) (collectively, “Prohibited Acts”), then, upon such determination
by the Committee, the unvested portion of the Award shall be forfeited without consideration.

(i1) If it is determined by the Committee that the Grantee engaged in (or is engaging in) any Prohibited Act where such
Prohibited Act occurred or is occurring within the one (1) year period immediately following the Vesting Date, the Grantee agrees
that he/she will repay to the Company any gain realized on the vesting of the Award (such gain to be valued as of the Vesting Date
based on the fair market value of the Shares vesting on the Vesting Date). Such repayment obligation will be effective as of the date
specified by the Committee. Any repayment obligation must be satisfied in cash or, if permitted in the sole discretion of the
Committee, in Shares having a fair market value equal to the gain realized upon vesting of the Award. The Company is specifically
authorized to off-set and deduct from any other payments, if any, including, without limitation, wages, salary or bonus, that it may
own the Grantee to secure the repayment obligations herein contained.

The determination of whether the Grantee has engaged in a Prohibited Act shall be determined by the Committee in good faith and in its
sole discretion.



For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Competitive Activity” shall mean the Grantee, without the prior written permission of the
Committee, anywhere in the world where the Company (or any parent or subsidiary) engages in business, directly or indirectly, (i) entering
into the employ of or rendering any services to any person, entity or organization engaged in a business which is directly or indirectly
related to the businesses of the Company or any parent or subsidiary (“Competitive Business™) or (ii) becoming associated with or
interested in any Competitive Business as an individual, partner, shareholder, creditor, director, officer, principal, agent, employee, trustee,
consultant, advisor or in any other relationship or capacity other than ownership of passive investments not exceeding one percent (1%) of
the vote or value of such Competitive Business.

(e) The term “Company” as used in this Agreement with reference to the employment or service of the Grantee shall include
the Company and its parent and subsidiaries, as appropriate.

6. Change in Control.

(a) In the event of a Change in Control in which the surviving entity (together with its affiliates, the “Surviving_Entity”)
assumes the unvested portion of the Award, if any, or substitutes a similar award under the Surviving Entity’s equity compensation plan for
the unvested portion of the Award, if any, on the same terms and conditions as the original Award, the Award that is assumed or substituted
shall not vest solely as a result of the occurrence of the Change in Control. In the event that within twelve (12) months following the
occurrence of a Change in Control of the Company, the Grantee’s employment or service relationship with the Company is terminated by
the Company without Cause (as defined herein), then the Award, as assumed or substituted by the Surviving Entity, that remains at such
time shall be deemed to vest and become Earned Shares at a number of Shares equal to the greater of (i) the Target Shares and (ii) the
number of Shares that would be earned based on actual performance if the Performance Period ended on the date of such termination.

(b) Under a Change in Control in which the unvested portion of the Award, if any, is not assumed or substitute awards are not
granted by the Surviving Entity as provided in Section 6(a) above, any such unvested portion of the Award shall become immediately
vested and become Earned Shares at a number of Shares equal to the greater of (i) the Target Shares and (ii) the number of Shares that
would be earned based on actual performance if the Performance Period ended on the date of the Change in Control.

(©) For purposes hereof, “Cause” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in any employment agreement or other similar
agreement between the Grantee and the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or, if no such agreement exists, or if there are multiple such
agreements and the provisions of such agreements conflict, means (a) the Grantee’s failure to perform (other than by reason of Disability),
or material negligence in the performance of, his or her duties and responsibilities to the Company or any of its affiliates; (b) material
breach by the Grantee of any provision of this Agreement or any employment or other written agreement; or (c) other conduct by the
Grantee that is materially harmful to the business, interests or reputation of the Company or any of its affiliates.



7. Withholding. The Grantee agrees that no later than each Vesting Date, the Grantee shall pay to the administrator of the Plan, (the
“Administrator”) (or at the option of the Company, to the Company) such amount as the Company deems necessary to satisfy its obligation to
withhold federal, state or local income or other taxes incurred with respect to the portion of the Award vesting on such Vesting Date. The Grantee
may elect to pay to the Administrator (or at the option of the Company, to the Company) an amount equal to the amount of the taxes which the
Company shall be required to withhold by delivering to the Administrator (or at the option of the Company, to the Company), cash, a check or at
the sole discretion of the Company, Shares having a fair market value equal to the amount of the withholding tax obligation as determined by the
Company.

8. Section 409A.

(a) It is the intent of the Company that the payments and benefits under this Agreement shall comply with, or be exempt from,
Section 409A of the Code and applicable regulations and guidance thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”) and accordingly, to the
maximum extent permitted, this Agreement shall be interpreted to be in compliance with, or be exempt from, Section 409A. In no event
whatsoever shall the Company be liable for any additional tax, interest or penalty that may be imposed on the Grantee by Section 409A or
for any damages for failing to comply with Section 409A.

(b) For purposes of Section 409A and to the extent Section 409A is applicable to any payment hereunder, Grantee’s right to
receive any installment payment pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as a right to receive a series of separate and distinct payments.

(©) Whenever a payment under this Agreement specifies a payment period with reference to a number of days (e.g., “payment
shall be made within two and one-half (2 and /2) months following the date specified in Section 2”), the actual date of payment within the
specified period shall be within the Company’s sole discretion.

(d) If the Grantee is deemed on the date of termination to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)
(B) of the Code, any amounts to which the Grantee is entitled under this Agreement that constitute “non-qualified deferred compensation”
payable on “separation from service” under Section 409A and would otherwise be payable prior to the earlier of (i) the six (6)-month
anniversary of the Grantee’s date of termination and (ii) the date of the Grantee’s death (the “Delay Period”) shall instead be paid in a lump
sum immediately upon (and not before) the expiration of the Delay Period to the extent required under Section 409A.

9. Rights as a Stockholder. No Shares shall be issued under this Award until payment of the applicable tax withholding obligations
have been satisfied or provided for to the satisfaction of the Company, and the Grantee shall have no rights as a stockholder with respect to any
Shares covered by this Award until such Shares are duly and validly issued by the Company to or on behalf of the Grantee.

10. Non-Transferability. This Award is not assignable or transferable except upon the Grantee’s death to a beneficiary designated by the
Grantee in a manner prescribed or approved for this purpose by the Committee or, if no designated beneficiary shall survive the Grantee, pursuant
to the Grantee’s will or by the laws of descent and distribution.



11. Limitation of Rights. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall confer upon the Grantee any right with respect to the continuation
of his or her employment or service with the Company, or interfere in any way with the right of the Company at any time to terminate such
employment or other service or to increase or decrease, or otherwise adjust, the compensation and/or other terms and conditions of the Grantee’s
employment or other service.

12. Securities Representations. The Grantee agrees, by acceptance of this Award, that, upon issuance of any Shares hereunder, that,
unless such Shares are then registered under applicable federal and state securities laws, (i) acquisition of such Shares will be for investment and
not with a view to the distribution thereof, and (ii) the Company may require an investment letter from the Grantee in such form as may be
recommended by Company counsel. The Company shall in no event be obliged to register any securities pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 (as
now in effect or as hereafter amended) or to take any other affirmative action in order to effect the issuance or transfer of Shares pursuant to this
Award or to comply with any law or regulation of any governmental authority.

13. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement shall be addressed to it in care of its Secretary at its executive
offices at Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., 4830 North Loop 1604 West, Suite 111, San Antonio, Texas 78249, and any notice to the Grantee
shall be addressed to the Grantee at the current address shown on the payroll records of the Company. Any notice shall be deemed to be duly given
if and when properly addressed and posted by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

14. Incorporation of Plan by Reference. This Award is granted pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the terms of which are incorporated
herein by reference, and this Award shall in all respects be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. The Committee shall interpret and construe the
Plan and this Agreement and its interpretations and determinations shall be conclusive and binding on the parties hereto and any other person
claiming an interest hereunder, with respect to any issue arising hereunder or thereunder. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the
terms and provisions of the Plan and the provisions of this Agreement, the Plan shall govern and control.

15. Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights of all persons claiming under this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Delaware, without giving effect to conflicts of laws principles thereof.

16. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective
successors and permitted assigns. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof
and may not be modified other than by written instrument executed by the parties; provided, however, that in the event of a conflict between this
Agreement and any employment or severance agreement between the Company and the Grantee, such employment or severance agreement shall
control. The issuance of the Awards or unrestricted Shares pursuant to this Agreement shall be subject to, and shall comply with, any applicable
requirements of any foreign and U.S. federal and state securities laws, rules and regulations (including, without limitation, the provisions of the
Securities Act, the Exchange Act and in each case any respective rules and regulations promulgated thereunder) and any other law or regulation
applicable thereto. The Company shall not be obligated to issue any Shares pursuant to this Agreement if any such issuance would violate any
such requirements. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of
which shall constitute one and the same instrument.



17. Company Recoupment of Awards. The Grantee’s rights with respect to this Award shall in all events be subject to (a) all rights that
the Company may have under any Company clawback or recoupment policy or any other agreement or arrangement with the Grantee, and (b) all
rights and obligations that the Company may have regarding the clawback of “incentive-based compensation” under Section 10D of the Exchange
Act and any applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to time by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

18. Consent. By signing this Agreement, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that:

(a) The Company and the Company’s affiliates are permitted to hold and process personal (and sensitive) information and data
about the Grantee as part of its personnel and other business records and may use such information in the course of such entity’s business.

(b) In the event that disclosure is required for the proper conduct of the business (as determined by the Company and the
Company’s affiliates), the Company and the Company’s affiliates may disclose the information referenced in Section 18(a) to third parties,
including when such entities are situated outside the European Economic Area.

(©) This Section 18 applies to information held, used or disclosed in any medium.
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Grantee: “Participant Name”

Grant Date: “grant date”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Award to be executed under its corporate seal by its duly authorized officer. This
Award shall take effect as a sealed instrument.

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:

Dated: “acceptance date”
Acknowledged and Agreed
“Electronic Signature”
Name: “Participant Name”

Address of Principal Residence:

Signature Page



EXHIBIT 31.1 — CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Scott R. Wells, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: August 5, 2025

/s/ Scott R. Wells

Scott R. Wells
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2 — CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, David Sailer, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: August 5, 2025

/s/ David Sailer

David Sailer
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1 — CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

This certification is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and accompanies the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-Q”) of Clear Channel Outdoor
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”). The undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge, the Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: August 5, 2025

By: /s/ Scott R. Wells
Name: Scott R. Wells
Title: Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2 — CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

This certification is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and accompanies the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-Q”) of Clear Channel Outdoor
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”). The undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge, the Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: August 5, 2025

By: /s/ David Sailer
Name: David Sailer
Title: Chief Financial Officer




